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This Agreement is entered into for the purpose of resolving all fssues
raised in these dockets. This Agreement is subject to approval by the
Washington Utilities and Transportation Comrnission (“Commission”), and is
not effective before such approval. The documents constituting the agreement of

the Partcs are this ”Sﬂtt].enwmit Agreement” and Appendices A, B and C attached
hereto, collectively called the “Agreement” herein,

Appendix A is a copy of the Viclation Report issued to Avista

Corporation, d/bfa Avista Utilities, Appendix B containg copies of sfate rules and '

federal rulag that have bean adopted by reference by the Commission, and are

relevant Lo or referred lo in this Agreemenl. Appendix C lists the specific follow-

up actons Avista agrees to perform system-wide in this state to address
Comunission Staff's concerns.

I. PARTIES

The parties o this Agreement are the Respondent, A vista Corporafion,

d/bfa Avista Uttlities (* Avista” or “company”), and the Stall of the Commission
{"5taff”) {collectively, “the Parties™).
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1. BACKGROUND

Avista is a public service company subjeet to Commission regulation
under Title 80 RCW. As pertinent to this Settlement Apreement, Avista operates
as a “gus cumpany” as that term is defined in RCW 80.04.010. Avista owns and
operates a natural gas distribution systeémin Bastern Washington. Avista serves
regidential, commerdal and industrial customers with natural gas, under tariffs.
subject to Commission regulation. Asista is subject to Comanisston safety rules
applicable fo natural gas pipelines. L.¢., RCW 80.28.210.

In Dcket No, UIG020218, Staff conducted a Standard Natural Gas
Pipeline Inspection of Avista’s pipcline fadilitates in the Spokane and Ritzville
Districts of Avista's service area. That inspection took place February 11-15 and
February 18-22, 2002,

In Docket No. UG-020575, Skaff conducted a Standard Nataral Gas
Pipeline Inspection of Avista’s pipeline facilities in the Goldendale and
Stevenson Districts of Avista’s service area. That inspecton took place the week
of Juna 17, 2002,

In these inspections, Commission 5taff reviewed the procedures, records
inventory and natural gas facilities of Avista.

As a result of these inspections, Staff issued a Violation Report {Appendix
A) listing allegations that Avista violated WAC 480-93-015, WAC 480-93-110,
WAC 430-93-183 WAC 480-93-186, WAC 480-93-157, WA C 480-93-188, and WAC
480-93-010, some sections of which adopt and incorporates, inter alia, Title 49 of
the Code of Federal Regulations (“CFR" ), Part 192. Violations of specific
requirements of 49 CFR Fart 192 were alleged. This action was taken in Docket
Nos, UG-020218 and UG-020575.. Appendix A itemizes the specific violalions
alleged.

On November 13, 2002, the Cornmission, based on the Violation Report

{Appendix A), issued its Complaint to continue Docket Nos, UG-(20218 and UG-
(20575, The Complaint summarized the viclations in the following areas:
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Avista did not have readily detectable odorization at
required levels at certain of ils facilities; '

Avista did not have adequate cathodic protection
applied to certain of its facilities, and/or that low
cathodic protection readings were not corrected within
901 days, and/or that Avista had an insufficient number
of test sites necessary fo measure the adequaq of the
cathodic protection system;

Avista could not provide records demcnattﬂtrng that an

atmespheric corrosion monitoring program wagin
placc in certain arcas;

Awista had documents indicating that the maximuim
allowable operating pressure had boen exceeded on
gertain occasions, but Avista could not demonstrate
that it had notified the Corrunission of such incidents as

riaJuired;

- Awvista had various problems with compliance with

leak detection, mcluding untimely folow-up

. inspections for several grade 1 leaks, failure to grade a

leak upon discovery, meomplete documentation of
leaks; and

Avisla did not have adequal,e records indicating thal it
had netified certain new customers of the option to
install an exccess flow valve.

A prehearing conference was held on January 34, 2003, The only two
partics to these dockats are Avista and the Commission.

Since issuing its Viclation Report (Appendix A), Staff has been discussing
with Avista ways to resobve the issues now presented in these dockets, in a
manner that assures present and fufure compliance with applicable Commmission
laws and rules. Both Partes share the goal that Avista's pipeline facilities be
operated in compliance with Commission [aws and rules related to the safe
operation of those facilities.
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I, AGREEMENT

The Parties have reached agreement on how to resolve the issues raised in
these dockets and wish to present their agreement for the Commission’s
consideration and apprdval. The Parties voluntarily enter this Agreement
without hearing or adjudication of any issues of fact or law to resolyve the matters
in dispute between thern in what each Party believes is an appropriate manner,
and to avoid the expense, time and uncertainty of litigation.,

This Agreemerit outlines the elements of agreement; and the sections of
the Violaton Report {Appendix-A) cach aspect of the Agreement addresses. The
most relevant sections of the CFR described herein are included in Appendix B to

this Agreement.
Allegad Violations Cured

_ As of the date this Agreement was execuied, the specific violations alleged
in Staff's Violation Report (Appendix A) have been cured by Avista. Staff has

independently confirmed this fact, based in part an a site visit by Staff try the
. Avista Facilities involved. :

This addresses all the specific Herns in the Viclation Report (Appendix A).
Agguring Compliance System-wide in This State

As 2 practical matter, in inspecting companies with facilities that cover a
large area, Commuissgion Staff inspects a imited area, and if problems are found,
Staff requests the company to conduct inspections to determine whether the
problemns exist system-wide in this state, and if so, to correct the problems that
ate found. For example, in thiz case, the Commission Staff found problems with
cathodic protection and leak detection in regards to the limited areas of Avista’s
system that were inspected. It is reasonahle to require Avista to conduct an
analysis of ite system in this state with respect to certain of the problems ftemized
in Staff’s Violation Report, and to correct whatever problems are discovered.,
Avista has agreed to do so.

SETTLEMENT ACGREEMENT - 4
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Accordingly, Avista agrees to conduct the activities listed in Appendix C.
This addresses all items in the Violation Report (Appendix A), on a going
forvrard basis, system-wide in this state,

Admissions of Violations and Sanctions

Avista has reviewed in detail the Cormmission Staff’s Violation Report
(Appendix A), and has taken the nj:qﬂnftunity to disctiss with Staff in detfail the
allegations in that Violation Report. Avista concurs with the findings of the
Violation Report cot forth in Appendix A, with the exception of the findings
relating to Violation Number 11. Violation Number 11 involved a matter that
had been addressed in a prior proceeding, and Avista was handling the matter.
Staff has concluded that this violation should not have been characterized asa
“repeat violation” in the Violation Report Staff issued. For this reason, if this
case went to hearing, Comnission S{afl would not have pursued Viclation
Nuimber 11,

Avista and Commission Staff have agreed Lhat Avista will pay to the
Commission penaltics fotaling ffty thousand dollars ($50,000.00). This amount
shall be due and payable within fifteen calendar days after the date of the
Commission order approving this Agreement. Avista will pay the Comumission
that amount by that date. If Avista fails to Bmely comply with any of the

-specified obligations contained in Appendix C, nothing in this Agreement

prevents the Commission Staff from recommending, and the Commission
Imposing, additional sanctions for any viclations of Commission laws and rules
that are discovered during the additional activities Avista has agreed to conduct
as described in Appendix C. Nothing in this Agreement imits Avista's
arguments or defenses in any such enforeement action, including a showing that
lack of meliness was justified due to circumstances beyond Avistas control.

SETTLEMENT AGREBMENT - 5
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IV, GENERAL PROVISIONS
Nature of the Agreement.

The Parties agree that this Agreement Is an appropriate settlement of all
contested isstes between them in this proceeding. The Paries undetstand that

. this Agreement is subject to Commission approval and it is not effective unless

and until it is approved by the Commission.

Nothing in this Agreement is intended to limit or bar any other entity
from pursuing legal dmms, or tolimit or bar Avisia’s ability to assert defenses to
such claims.

- Nothing in this Agreement limits oz bars the Commission from pursuing

. penaltes for violafions of Commission statutes and rules unrelated to the subject -

matter of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agrecinent limits or bars the
Commission from pursuing penalties for violations of Commdssion statutes and
rules that are relited to the subject matter of this Agrecment, but wh ich
violations occurred after the date this Agreement was executed. The
Commission Staff understands that as a result of the steps Avisla has agreed to
take (deseribed in Appendix ), additional eonditions may be found that
constitute violations of Commission laws and rules.  Staff agrees that so long as
these viclations are of the same type as those listed in Appendix A, and il Avisla
mects the fimeframes agreed to in Appendix C, Staff will not recommend
additional sanctions be pursued by the Commission for such violations.

The Parties have entered into this Agreement to avoid further expense,
inconvenience, uncertainty, and delay. The Parties recognize that this
Agreement represents a compromise of the "arties” positions, As such, conduct,
statements, and documents disclosed during negotiations of this Agreement shall
not be admizsible as evidence in this or any other proceeding, except in any
proceeding to enforce the terms of this Agreement or any Commission Qrder
fully adopfing those terms. This Agrecment shall nat be construed against EIﬂ‘lEI“
Party because it was a drafter of this Agreement.

SETTLEMENT ACREEMINT - 6
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_indicated on the signatures.

Integrated Terms of Settlement

The Parties have negotiated this Agreement as an integrated docwmnent o
be filed with the Commission only upon execution. Once the Agreement is
executed, the Parties agree to support the Agreement in its entirety. This
Agreement supersedes all prior oral and written agreements on issues addressed
herein, if any,

Manner of Execution

This Agreement is considered executed when all artes sign the
Agreement. A designated and authorized representative may sign the

~ Agreement on a Party’s behalf. The Partes may execute this Agreement in

counterparts, If the Agreement is executed in counterparts, all counterparis shall
constitute one agreement. An Agreement signed in counterpart and sent by
facsimile is a5 cffective as an original document. A faxed signature page
containing the signature of a I'arty is acceptablc as an original signalure page -
signed by that L'arty. Lach Party shall indicate the date of itz signature on the
Agreement. The date of exccution of the Agreement will be the latest date

Procedure

Once this Agreement is exceated, the Parlies agree to cooperate in
promptly filing this Agreement with the Commission for approval. The Parties
agree to support approval of this Agreement in proceedings before the
Commission, through fe:%i'imcm}r and/or briefing, However, i there isa
Commission ardes, rule or policy statement issued after the date this Agreement
is executed but before it is approved, and that order, rule or policy statement,
changes the posture of the Agreement in either Party’s view, commenls may be
magle to the Comumission as to how the Agresment should be viewed in light of
that order, rule or policy statement. The Parties agree to request from the
Commission a hearing to present this Agreement, and the suspension of the
existing remaining procedural schedule in these duckets. The Parties understand
that the Commission will decide the appropriate procedures for presenfation and
consideration of the Agreement.

SETTLEMENT AGRFFMENT -7
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At the hearing on the Agreement, each Party shall each make available a
witness or witnesses to answer questions and to supporl the Agreement. Any
Party may clect to file, on or before 5 calendar days of the hearing on the -
Agreement, a memorandum with the Cominission explaining the Settlement. It
is understood that such a memorandum may contain the perspectives of the
filing Party which may or not be the perspectives of the other Party.

In the event that the Commission rejects all or any portion of thiz
Agreement, each Party reserves the right to withdraw from this Agreement by
written natice to the other Party and the Commission. Written notice must be
served within 10 buitsiness days of the date of the Commission order rejecting all
or any portion of this Agreement. In such event, neither Party will be bound or
prejudiced by the termis of this Agreement. The Parlies will jointly request a |
prehearing conference for purposes of establishing a procedural schedule to

mmp]ete the case.

No precédent

No Party shall be deemed to have agreed that this Agresment is precedent
for resolving any issues in any other proceeding, other than a procceding for
enforcement of this Agreement.

For Comimission Siaff; _ For Avvistar
Dionald ‘L. Trotter Dravid [. Meyer
Assistant Attorney General Senior Vice Fresident and
General Counsel
g\ W(/d\ fh Avista Corporation
Date slgﬂed Dhate signed:

;{/w 035
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At the hearing on the Agreemeny, each Party shall epch rake available a
witness or witnesses to answer questions and to support the Agreement: Any
Party may elef to file, on or before § calendar days of the hearing on the
Agreament, a mernorandum with the Commission evplairdng the Settlement. It
fe understood that such a memotandum may contsin the perspectives of the
filing Party widch may ox not be the perspectives of the other Farty,

In the event that the Commisslon xejects all or any portion of fhis
Agreement, ench Party reserves the right to withdraw froz this Agreement by
withen notice 10 the ofher Party anid the Commission. Written notee miustbo
served within 10 busiriess days of the date of #he Commyission order réjscting all
0T any portion of this Agresment, In such event, nelther Farty will be bound o
Prejudiced by the terms of this-Agreemeant. The Partfes'will joitdly reguest a
prehearing confarance for purposes of etablishing a procedural schedule to
complete the ¢ase, ' : :

Noprecedent
No Party shall be desined to have agreed that this Agresment is precedent

for resolving any issues in any other procéeding, othar than a provesding for
enfofcement of this Agresmant. T

For Commission Staff: ' For Avista:
Deneld T. Trotter | David . Meyer
. Assistant Attorney General _ Banior Vice President snd
General Counsel
j | | . Aviste Corporation

@Qﬁ
slaned: -

Date ﬂmz;%/aﬁ IR ;/#,-/c:.?
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Washington Utilities and Transpnﬁaﬁun Commission

2002 Gas Pipeline Salety luspection
Avista Uiilities, Spokane/Riteville and Goldendale/Stevenson, Washington

YIOLATION REPORT

The following violatiens of the Washinzton Administrative Code (WAC) Chapter 450-93
umed Title 49 CFR Part 192 rules were found as a result of the February 6, 2002 through
February 22, 2002, Spokane/Ritzville district and June 17 through June 22, 2002
Goldendals/Stevenson district, pipeline safety inspection of Avista Utilities’ facilities and
opecations. The inspection included a review of the procedwes, records, inventory, and
naiural gas facilitics.

1. WAC 480-93-015 Odovization of Gas AH grus beiny transported by pipeline in this
state, and all gar consumed by an end use customer, shall be odorized in accordance
with 48 CFR, Part 192,623, unless waiver is approved in advance of such

‘transportation, in writing, by the conmisyion.

Findings:

Spokane/Ritzville District: _

This finding is based on an Avista adopted Lower Explosive Limit (LEL) of five
percent gas in air. Odorization records indicated that for the month of May 2001,
Avista did not have readily deleciable oderization at the required Jevels. Records for
the seven tost sites in the Spokanc area indicated that the systems were edorized toc a
level that was nof readily detectible uniil 2 concentralion of gas in air of 1.3 percent.
Thix does not meet the minimum requirement that the systeins be odorized at a
readily detectible level of approximately one pereetid gas in ait (based on an LHL of
five percent). No decumentation was provided indicating Avista persormel
recoghized the itadeguate levels.of odorization or thai any comective actions were
taken.

2. WAC 480-93-110 Corrosion Control Every us company must ensure that afl of its
metaliic gas pipefines, except cast iron and duciile iron, are protected hy a
recognized method or combination of methods of cathedic protection,

REPEAT VIOLATION

Findings:

Aviata has an undetennined number of short sectionz of steel main and izsolated afecl
gervice risers that do not have adequate cathodic proteciton applied. The followang
were found 10 have inadequale or no levels of cathodic protection applied:

DPESAFENA T A Ush i Avieta 2000 QI8 and {20575 Penudbe Tetter Yaoletimee doe:
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Spokane/Ritzville District:

a.
b.

2901 N. Argonne, Suite 5, Spokane. Reading of -0.59 volt.
6606 N, Division, Spokane. Heading of .54 volt.

Goldendale/Stevenson:

HER e an T

ol

320 Colombus 8¢, Goldendale. Reading of —u 40 volt.
208 Columbus 8t., Goldendale. Reading of -0.43 volt.

" 125 Brooks St., Goldendale. Reading of ~0.77 voli.

117 Brooks St.. Goldendale. Reading of —{.33 voli.
608 Golden St., Goldendale. Reading of —0.12 volt,
610 Golden Si., Goldendale. Reading of -.56 vol.
315 Collus, Goldendale. Reading of —0.43 volt.

- NW Manufacturieg, Caseade Ave, Stevenson, Reading of .49 voli.

Two-imch steel wrapped main on Mill St Bridee over Litte Kliclkitat
River. Reading of -(1L.52 volt.

Three guarter inch main in the 600 block of Golden St., Goldendale,
Reatliugs taken from services. '

0111' mspﬂchﬂn report dated March 27,2001, dncket number UG-001851, previonsly
identified thizs viclation.

i

WAL 480-93-110 Cﬂi‘rﬂsil:r]_l Control “.. Every soy company shell record wnd

retain all cathodic protection test readings rfen and complete remedial wctfon within
ninety days to correct any eathodic pratection dcﬁcmuczas known and indicated by

the company's record
" REPEAT VIOLATION
Sprekane/Ritzville District:

Doompentation indicates the firllowing canier pipe Cathodic Protection {CP) readings
did not meet the minimum level of —0.85 volt and were not corrected within 90 days:

oM

Erle & Froai, Spokane. 10-15-2001 sarveys. Records indicate (haf the
carrier pipe had a reading of -0.75 volf, which doesn’t meet the Avista
adopted criferia of L85 volt. Avista was unable to provide documentation
indieating that the low CP reading was corrected mt]nn the 90-day
requirsment.

Freya & Track at Riverside, Spokane. - 10-25-200F surveys. Records
indicate that the cartier pipe had & reading of 0.6 volt, which doesn’t meet
the Avista adopted criteria of —0.85 volt. Avisla was imable to provide
documentation indicating that the low CP reading was corrected within the
90-day requirement.

Greene & Tracks at Ralph, Spokane. 10-25-2001 surveys. Records
indicate that the carrier pipe had areading of -0.47 volt, which doesn’t meet
the Avigta adopted criteria of —0.85 volt. Avista was miable to provide
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documentation indicating that the low CP reading was corrected within the
D0-day requircment.

Lenedeke & 8™ (E casing), Fairchild to Spokane. 10-18-2001 surveys,
Records indicate that the cartier pipe had a reading of -0.78 voli, which
doesn’t meet the Avista adopted criteria of 0,85 volt. Avista was unable to
provide documentation mdicating that the low CP teuding was corrected
within the 90-day requirement.

Starr Rd & Trent, Spokane Valley. 16-02- 2001 surveys Records indicate
that the carmier pipe had a reading of -0.64 volt, which doesn’t meet the -
Axista adopted criteria of 10.85 volt. Awvista was unable to provide .
documentation indicating that the lowr CP reading was currected within the
90-day requirement.

-Starr Rd & Tracks § of Trent, Spnkane Valley, 10-02-2061 surveys,

- Records indicate that the carrier pipe had a reading of -0.64 volt, which

h:

a.

doesn’t meet the Avista adopted criteria of —).85 volt: Avista-was unable to
provide documentation indicating that the low CP reading was corrected

" within the 90-day requircment.

Btwn Ureeway & Appleway at 22415 E, Spokane Valley. 10-02-2001
surveys. Records indicale that the carrier pipe had a reading of -0.76 vol,
which dossn’t meet the Avisia adopted criteria of -0.85 volt. Avistawas
unable to provide documentation indicating that the low CP reading was
comected within the 30-day requirgment. - -

Dycr & north tracks N of Sprague, Spokane Valley. 1[I 04-2001 sun::ys
Records indicate Lhal the carrier pipe had a reading of -0.7 voit, which
doesn’t mect the Avista adopted criteria of ~0.85 volt. Avista was unable to
provide documentalion indicating that the low CP reading was correcied
within the 90-day requirement.

Dyer & south tracks N of Sprague, Spokane Valley, 10-04-2001 surveys.
Records indicate that the carrer pipe had a roading of -0.72 volt, which
doesnt meet the Avisla adopted criteria of --0.85 volt. Avista was unable to
provide documentation indicating that the low CP reading was correclud
within the #0-day requitemen|,

Sprague & Dyer, Spokane Valley. 10-04-2001 sorveys. Records indicate
that the cardier pips had a reading of 0.7 volt, which deesn’t mecl the Avista
adopted criteria of .85 volt. Awista was unable to provide documentation
indicating that the low CP reading was corected within the 90-day
requitement.

Spokane/Ritzville District:
Documentation indicates the following caging reads exceeded the maxinm level
adopted by Avista of -.730v and were not addressed or followed up with clectrical

tzolation testing within 90 days:

White Rd & % mile 8 of Hwy 902, Spokane. 10-17-2001 surveys,
Records indicate {hat the casing had a reading of —0.77 volt, whick is above
the potential adopted by Avista thal requires follow up testing for electrical
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isotation. As of Apnl 2002 Avista had not conducted follow up electrical
isolation testing.

h. 1-90 & % mile S of Hwy 902 at White Rd, Fairchild to Spokane. 10-18-
2001 surveys. Records indicate that the casing had a reading of —01.75 volt,
which is above the polential adopted by Avista requiring follow up testing for
electrical isolation. As of April 2002 Avista had not conducted fallow up

- electrieal isolation testing,

¢. Hwy 395 & Crawford So side, Kettle Falls o Spokane, 10-23-2001
surveys. Records indicate that the casing had a reading of 074 volt, which
is above the potential adopted by Avista requiting follow up testing for
elecirical isolation. As of April 2002 Avista had not cnm:lu::tad follow up

. electrical isolation testing,

d. Hwy 395 & Monroe Rd north side, Kettle Falls tﬂ Spokane. 10-23-2001
surveys, Records mdicate that the casing had a reading of -0.73 volt, which
is at the potential adopted by Avista requiring follow ujp testing for electiical
isolation. As of April 2002 Avista had not conducted follow up electrical
1selation testing.

e. Trent & Park, Spokanc Vallcy, 10-01-2001 surveys. Rocords md:lmtc that
the casing had a reading of .78 volt, which is above thé polential adopicd
by Aviata requining follow up testing for electrical isolation. As of April
2002 Avista had not conducted follow up slectrical isolation fesiing. -

I. Eoclid & Center, Spokane Valley, 10-01-2001 surveys. Records indicate
that the casing had a reading of —1.02 volt, which is above the petential
adopted by Avista requiring follow up testing for electrical isolation. Asof
April 2002 Avista had nof conducted follow up electrical isclafion festing.

g. Tracks S of Trent & Progréss, Spokane Valley., 10-02-2001 surveys.
Records indicate fbat the casing had a reading of —0.95 volt, whichi1s above
the potentiat adopted by Avistz requiring follow up testing for elcctrical
1golation. As of Apnil 2002 Avists had not conducted follow up electrical
izolation testing,

h. Tracks ¥ wile E of Van Marter & N of Columbia, Ritzville. 10-24-2001
surveys. Records indicate that the casing had a reading of -0.93 volt, which
iz above the potential adopted by Avista requiring follow np testing for
clectrical isolation. As of April 2002 Avista had nol condacted follow up
clecirical isolalion testing.

i. Spragne & Fancher, Spokane Valley. 10-04-2001 surveys, Records
indicate that the caging had a reading of —0.82 voii, which is sbove the
potential adopted by Avista requiring follow up testing for electrical isolation.
As of April zm::z Avista had not conducted follow up electrical isolation

testing.

Chur inspection report dated March 27, 2001, docket number UG-001 851 and August 2,
2001, docket nnmber UG-D10855, previouvsly identified this violation.

4. WAC 480-93-183 Pipeline and System Pressure Reporting A/ gas companies
shail establish o maximum operating prevsizra for ¢ pipeline or svstem, in accordance
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with this chapter, and notify the commission of the following pressure related
changes:

{1) When a pipeline or system pressure exceeds the established maximum operating
pressure, the commission shall be notificd within six hours, fo be followed by written
explanation within thirty days.

Findings

Spokane/Ritzville District:

Staff reviowed system pressure “exceplion reports™ for the Spokane district and found
the following systems that exceeded the established Maximom Allowable Operating
Preszure (MAOP). Avista did not make Commiszion notifieation as required.

a. Spokane West Gate #3. Records indicate that the MAQP is 366 psig and that
a presswre of 367.3 peig was reached on May 9, 2001,

. Mead City Gate. Records indicate that the MAOP 15 174 psip and that a
pressures of 179.2 peig was reached on May B, 2001,

¢. Mead City Gate. Records Didicate that the MAOP is 174 and that 3 pressure
of 175.2 wasg reached on May 4, 2001,

. WAC 480-93-186{1)(c) Leakage Classification and Actien Criteria

(£} Gus leak classification and repair.

{t) Follow-up inspections. The adequacy of leak repm?v shall he eﬁerh’d By
dcosptable methods while the excavation is open. The perimeter of the leak ared
shall be checked with a OGL In the case df repair of @ Grade 1 leak, where there is
restched yus in the grownd, o follow-up inspeciion shall be made as soow as practical
bt in mo cose fiter than one month following the repair. In the case of Grade 2 or
Grrade 3 Teaks, which have been repaired, the need jor a follow-up. inspection shall be
derermined by qualified personnel employed or retained by the gas conpany.

REPEAT VIOLATION

Findings:

Spokane/Ritzville District:
Decumentation mdicates that the following grade 1 leaks did nof have follow up

mspmnons made within the 30-day limit:

a. 7026 8. Crestview, Spokane, 3/20/01.  Avista’s docmmentation indicates
regidizal gas waz left in the ground after a leak repair, which requirez a follow
up tnspection within 20 days. Decumentation indicates that a follow up
inspection was not conducted wtil 1/ 5/02,

b. 8314 K. Sinto, Spokane, 4/27/01 Avista’s documentation indicates resgidnal
gas was lefl in the gronnd after a leak repair which requires a [ollow up
‘inspection within 30 days. No documentation was provided whl-:h indicated
that a 30-day follow up was conducted.
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e. N.13615 River Bluff Ln, 10/11/01, Awvista’s documentation indicates
residual gas was lett in the ground afier a leak repair, which requires & follow
tp inspection within 30 days. Decomentation mdlcﬂl:es that a follow up was
not condueted until 12720/61.

d. 7909 N. Rye, 10/15/G1. The “leakfodor m‘l.?Eﬂtlgatl on’” section of Avista’s
leak documnemtation indicates that 35% residual gas was left after repaiv but
the “re-inspoction required” scetion of the leak document 1s not marked. A
[oilow up recheck wis not conducled until 12/26/1.

Our inspection report dated March 27, 2001, docket number UG-001851, previously
identified this vioiation.

6, WAC 480-93-186{b} Leakare Classification and Action Criteria
Leak grades. Based on an evaluation of the location andfor magnitude of a leak, one
of the following leak grades shall he assigned, thereby extablishing the feak repair
. priority. A gas company may utilize an afphabetical grade classification, i.e. Grade
A far Grade I, Grade B for Grade 2, and Grade C for Grade 3 ifit has hivtoricatly
utitized such a grading desiznation.
(irade 1 - Grade T means « leak thet represents an extsting or probable hazard to
persons or properly and vequiring immediate repaiy oy confinuonus action wntil
conditions are no longer hazardous.
Grade 2 - Grade 2 means a leak recognized as being non-hazardous ar the time of
detection but requiring scheduled repair based on probable future hazard.
Grade 3-Grade 3 means a leak that is non-hazardous at the fime of detection and can
reasonably be expected to remain non-hazardous.
Leakage clussificarion and confrol reguirements are provided in Table }. The
exampler of leakage provided in the tuble are guidelines and are not exelusive. The
Judgment of the gas company personnel af the scene iy of primary importanee in
determining the grade assiened fo a leak.

Findings:

Goldendalc/Stevenson District:
Avista personnel discovered a leaking valve while performing routine antual valve
maintenance. This leak was not graded as required by WAC 480-93-186.

7. WAC 480-93-187(2) Records and Self-Andit  The following data and information
shail be recorded and maintained. Every gas company, wWhich by law must veport
leaks to a regulatory agency charged by law with exvironmemal protection, shall file

. coples of those reports with the commission. Data and informotion which cannot
- reasonably be expected {o De availabie under the particwiar circumstances of a leak
situation need not be reported, bt at @ minimum will include the following:
(e} Date and time detected, date and time reported, date and time and name of
emplovees dispatched, and the date and time the leak was investicated,
{B) Date and time the leal was reevaluated before repair, and the rame of the
emiplovee involved,
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(ch Date and time of repair, when a Grade I leak is Involved, and the name of the
emiplovee ik charge of the repair;
{d} Date and time the leak was rechecked after repair and the employee imvolved;
(e} If feak was reportable 1o an environmental agency, date and mm? report made 1o
reguiatory authority and name of veporting employee;
{f} Location of leak (stfficiently described ta aliow ready location by other
competent personnefl; :
{g) Leak grade;
tf} Line use (distvibution, trausmission, efc.);
(1) Method of leak detection (i reported by outside party, st name and ad:fmss)
(i) Part of system where leak occurred (medn, service, et };
(k) Part of sysiem wk;ch Imked {pipe, valve, fitting, campms‘.mr or regulator station,
ete.);
() Material which feaked (ﬁ‘fﬂf’f pfasrrf cast ivon, ele.);
{m) Orisin of leak;
. {n} Pipe descripton;
. {o} Type Yepaty;
() Lenk couve;
() Date pipe installed (f knowsy);
{t} Whether under cathodic proteciion; and
fs) Muognitude of CGI readings gt appropriate Iocations which are a part of the
classification procedures contuined in Table I of H‘HC :3’3{}' Y3-186 feodified as WAC
C480-93-18601).

REPEAT VIOLATION
Fiﬁtlings:
Spokane/Riteville District:

Stafi revicwed leak records for the Spokane district and observed leak records and
docurnentation without the required information as defined in 480-93-187, Follow-up
records for some prade 1 leaks with residual gas were incomplete with no ra-check
documentation. Following are examples of noted decumentation deficiencics:

a. 1509 N. Locast, Valley, 10/18/01. Documentation did nof indicate the
magnitude of Combustible {ias Indicator (CGI) readings, which arc a part of
the classification procedures. Paperwork indicates thai the broken pipeline
may have been leaking for 30 days but no CGI readings are recorded. -

k. 18019 N, Lidgerwoad, Colbert, 11/6/01. Documentation did not indicate
fhe magnitnde of CGI readings, which are a part of the classification
procedures. A follow up was conducted 30 davs after the leak was evaluated
but the original leak Form does nol indicate whether there wers any residual
readings, which would réquire a 30-day follow up. _

¢. 6252 Gunner, Nine Mile, 12/3/01. Docwmentation did noi indicale the
magnitnde of CG1 readings, which are a part of the clagsification procedures.
A follow up was conducted within 30 days after the leak was evaluated but the
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original leak form doss not indicate whether there were any residual readings,
which wonld require a 30-day follow up.

16101 N. Chronicle, 11/27/¢1, Documnentation did not indicate the
magnitude of CGI readings, which ars a part of the classification provedures,
2319 8. Newer Ct., Veradale, 12/05/01. Avista was unable to produce a leak
docunent or record for this damaged, broken and blowing meter set.

Onr inspection report dated March 27, 2001, docket rumber UG-001851, previously
identified this violation. - ' .

8. WAC 480-93-188 (6} Gas leak Surveys Leak survey reconds. For the most current

and immediately preceding survey of an area, the following information shail be
maintained:
fa) Description af system and areq surv:.,_wd {this could include mupx and leak survey

logut:

{B) Survey resulls;
(o) Survey method,
" fd) Names of those making survey;
{2} Survey dates; and
£ by addition to the above, the following records shall be kept for pressure drop test;
i) The name of the gus company, the name of the zus company employee responsibile
for making the tesi, and the name of any fest company used:
- fii) Test medium vsed,
(it} Test presyure,.
{iv) Tese duration;
£v) Pressure recording charts, or other vecord of pressure recdings; and
{vi) Test results.

Findings:

Spukanefﬂltzvﬂle Distriet:

b.

8324 E. Sinto, Spokane, 4/27/01. No pressure dm]:- test information was
docurnsnted after leak repair.

4914 N, Stone, T2/13/01. Avista’s documentation indicaies that a shoit
section of replacement pipeline was nstalled o repair a broken service line.
No pressure drop test infonnation was documented after leak repadr.

18019 N. Lidgerwood, Calhert, 11/6/01. No pressure drop beat information
was documented.

6252 Gunuer, Nine Mile, 12/3/01. Documentation does not indicate whether
a pressure drop test w a3 conducted or whother pre-tested pipe was used in the

-TEpAIT.

1509 N. L.oenst, Valley, 10/18/01. No pressare drop test information wis
dn-::ummtqd.

9. Part 192,469 External Corrosion Control: Test Stations Fach pipeline under
cathodic proteciton required by this subpart st have sufficient test stations or other
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11.

contact poiats for electrical measurement ta determine the adeguacy of cathodic
proteciion.

REPEAT VIOLATION

Findings:

Goldendale/Stevenson District:
Staff lecated a section of 2 inch Steel Wrapped (STW) pipe that does not have
cathodic protection. The pipeling is attached io the Mﬂl St. Bridge.

Staft localed a three goarler mch main, locuted in-the 600 b]ﬂclc of Brooks St. whmh
serves four individual gervices that do not have eathodic protection.

The existing {cst sites for these systems did not detect the deficiencies.

Owr inspection report dated March 27, 2001, docket nnimber UG- 851, previously
tdenttficd this violation. .

Part 192.383(b) Excess Flow Valves Costomer Notification Which customers
ritust receive notification. Notification iz rﬁgu:rﬂd an each newly installed service
Fine or replaced service fine that operates continuously throughoit the year at &
pressure nof less than 68.9 kPa (10 psig) and that serves a single restdence. O# these
{ines an operator of o natural gas distibution system pust m:rr‘yj? the rervice ling
chsiomer ance in wrifing.

Spokane/Ritzville Distriet:
Avisla’s Spokane office was unable to provida records of the rﬂqmred nuhﬁcmun for

new construclion plat customers.

_l_‘_é.rt 192467 (d} Casing of Pipelines fspection and elecirical tests must be made to
assure that elecirical Lsolation is adeguate.

Hindinge:

Spolkane/Ritzvitle Districe: :

Avista’s records indicate that the following casings do not have contact points for
testing ol electrical isolation beiween casing and carrier pipe. Avista iz currently leak
surveying these castngs, Leak surveys are not an edequate method of assuring
elecinical isolation belween casinygs and cartier pipe.

Division & Cataldo, Spokanc

Treat & Sherman, Spokane

Rebecen & Freeway, Spokane

Geiger Blvd & Garden Springs, Fairchild tn Spokane

ar e
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Darden S]‘ll’iﬂ%ﬂ & 100° E of Geiger, Falrchild io Spokane
Lenedeke & 8 (W casing), Fairchild to Spokane

Trent & Tracks at Airport, Spokane Valley

Treni & Relling Mill Rd, Spokane Valley

Trent & 14015 E, Spokane Valley

Harvard & Welleskey, Spokanc Valley

Tracks & 5 SE (1/2 mile E of U or Bruce Rd), Ritzville

-

B R e B

12. Part 192.491(c) Corrosion Control Records Foch operafor shall maintain o record

of each test, survey, or inspection required by this subpart in sufficient detail 1o
demonsiraie the adequacy of corroslon conirol measures ov that a corrosive
condilion does not exigt. These records must be reiained for at least ¥ years, except
that records velated 1o §§192.465¢) and (2) and 192 475(h) must be retained for oy
fong as the pipeline remains in service.

Findings:
Spoekane/Ritzvillc Disirict:

Ritzville was unable to provide records that an attmespheric corrosion-monitoring
program: was in place at the time of this inspection.
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APPENDIX B

State Rules and Federal Rules Adopted by Reference by the
Washington Utiliites and Transportation Commission,
and Relevent to the Settlemnent Agreement

Viplation 1

WAC 480-93-015, Qdorization of Gas

All gas being transported by pipeline in this state, and all gas consumed by an
end use customer, shall be odarized in aceord ance with 49 CFR, Part 192.625,
unless waiver is approved in advance of such transportation, in wriling, by the
comnission. '

Fitle 49 CFR, Part 192.625(a), Odorization of Gas

a) A cambustible gas in a distribution line mist contain a natural odorant or
be vdorized so that-at a concentration in air of one-fifth of the lower explosive
limit, the gas is readily detectable by a person with a normal sense of smetl.

Violation 2

- WAC 480-33-110, Corrosion Control -

Every gas company miust ensure that all of its metallic gas pipelines, except cast
iron and ductile iron, are protecied by a recognized method or combination of
methods of cathodic protection. Every gas company shall record and retain all
cathodic protection test readings taken and complete remedial action within
ninety days to correct any cathodic protection deficiencies known and indicated
by the company’s records, ) '

Violation 3

WAC 480-93-110, Corrosion Control :

Every gas company must ensute that all of its metallic gas pipelines, except cast
iron and ductile iron, are protected by a recognized method or combination of
methods of cathodic protection. Every gas company shall record and retain all
cathodic protection test readings taken and complete remedial action within
ninety days to correct any cathodic protection deficiencies known and indicated
by the company's records.



Violation 4
WAC 480-93-183, Pipeling and System Pressure Reporling
All gas companies shall establish a maximum operating pressure for a pipeline
ot system, in accordance with this chapter, and notity the commission of the
following pressure related changes:

{1)  When a pipchine or system pressure exceeds the established maximum
operating pressure, the commission shall be notified within six hours, to be
followed by written explanation within thirty days;

Violation §

- WAC 480-93-186(1)(c), Leakage Classification and Action Criteria
{1}  Gas leak classilication and repair.
{c) Follow-upinspections. The adequacy of leak repairs shall be checked hy
acceptable methods while the excavation is open. The parimeter of tho leak area
shall be checked with a CGL 1n the case of repair of a Grade 1 leak, wwhere there
is residual gas in the ground, a follow-up ingpection shail be miade as soon as
practical but.in no.case later than one month following the repair. In the case of
Grade 2 or Grade 3 leaks which have been repaired, the need for a [ollow-up
inspection shall be determined by qualified personnel employed or retained by
the gas company. :

Violation &

WAC 450-93-186(b), T.eakage Classilication and Action Criteria

(b) Leak grades. Based on an evaluation of the location and/or magnitude of
a leak, one of the nt_'[qumg leak grades shall be assighed, thereby establishing
ihe leak repair priorily. A gas company may ubilize an alphabetical grade
classification, 1.c. Crade A for Grade 1, Grade B for Grade 2, and Grade C for
Grade 3 if it has historically utilized such a grading designation.

Grade 1 - Grade 1 means a leak that represenls an existing or probable hazard to
porsing or property and requiring immediate repair or continuous action undl:
conditicns are no longer hazardous. '

Grade 2 - Grade 2 means a [eak recognized as being nonhazardous at the time of
detection but roquiring scheduled repair based on probable future hazard.
Grade 3-Grade 3 means a leak that isnonhazardous at the Hme of detection and
can reasonably be expected to remain nonhazardous.

Leakage classification and control requirements are provided in Table 1. The
examples of leakage provided in the table are guidelines and are not exclusive.
The judgment of the gas company personnel at the scene is of primary
importance in determining the grade assigned ta leak. -

T



Violation 7

WAC 480-93-187(2) Records and Self Audit

(2} The following data and information shall be recorded and maintained,
Every gas company which by law must report leaks to a regulalory agency
charged by law with environmenlal protection shail file copies of those reports
with the commission. Data and information which cannot reasonably be
expected to be available under the particular circumstances of a leak situation
need not be reported, but at a minimum will include Lhe following:

(a) Date and ime detected, date and time reported, date and time and name
of etnployees dispatched, and the date and time the leak wus investigated;

(b)  Date and time the leak was reevaluated before repair, and the name of the
employee involved;

(¢}  Date and time of repair, when a Grade 1 leak is involved, and the name of
the employee in charge of the repair;

(dy  Date and time the leak was réchecked after repair am:l the employee
nvolved;

(e)  If leak was reportable to an envirermental agency, date and time report
made to regulatory authority and name of reporting employee;

(f) Location of leak {sufficiontly described to allow ready location by other
competent persomnel);

& Leak grade;

(h}  Line use {distribution, transmission, etc.};

(it  Method of leak detection (if reported by outside party, list narme and
address); o

() Partof system where leak occurred (main, service, efc.);

(k) - Part of system which leaked (pips, valve, fitting, compressor ot regulator
station, etc.); _

()  Material which leaked {steel, plastic, cast iron, etc.);

(m)  Origin of leak;

(n}  Pipe description;

(o)  Type ropair;

(p)  Leak cause;

(q) Date pipe installed (if known);

(r}  Whether under cathodic protection; and

(s)  Magnitude of CGI readings at appropriate locations which are a patt of
the classificalion procedures contained in Table T of WAC 480-93-186 (codified as
WAC 480-93-18601).

The data to be recorded on leaks which have been appropriately classified as
"Grade 3" may be at the company's discretion, but must include, at a minimum,
information necessary to allow for proper follow-up action to be accomplished.



Viplation &

WAC 480-93-188(6), Gas Leak Surveys

(6)  Leak survey records. For the most current and immediately preceding
survey of an areg, the following information shall be maintained:

()  Description of system and area surveyed (this could include maps and
- leak survey logs});

{(b)  Survey resuits;

(©)  Survey method;

(d) Names of those making survey;

{2 Survey dates; and

(f) In addition to the above, the fnllﬂwmg rocards shall be kept for pressure
drop Lest: :

{(f)  Thename of the gas company, the name of the gas company employce
responsible for making the test, and the name of any test company used;

{ii)  Test medium used;

(in)  Test pressure;

(iv) Testduration; :
(v}  Pressure recording charts, or other record of prossure readings: and

{wi} Te&,t results..

Violation ¢ ' '
Tile 49 CFR, Part 192 469, Extemal Corrosion Control-Test Statlﬂﬂb

[Zach pipeline under cathedic protection required by this subpart must have
sufficient test stations or other contact points for electrical measurement fo

delermine the adequacy of calhodic proteclion.

Violation 10

Title 49CFR, Part 192.383{l1}, Excess Flow Valve Customer Notification

(b) Which customers must receive nokification. Notification is required on each
niewly installed service line or replaced service line that operates confinuously
throughout the year at a pressure not less than 68.9 kI*a (10 psig) and that serves
a single residence. On these lines an operator of a natural gas distribution
system must notify the service line customer once m writing.



Violation 11
Title 49 CFR, Part 192.467(d), Casing of Pipelines

Mot at issue.

[Reason: This violation has been previously addressed in Docket No. UG-020038
and is not a repeat violatdon, Staff would not pursuc this violation if this case
went to hearing].

Violation 12

Title 49 CFR, Part 192.4%(c}, Corrosion Controf Records

(¢} Each operator shall maintain a record of each test, survey, or ‘mspé-:tion
required by this subparl in sulficient detail to demonstrate the adequacy of
corrosion control measures or that a corrosive condition does not exist. these
records must be retained for at least 5 years, except that records related to
858122 465{a) and (e} and 192.475{(b) must be retained for as long as the pipeline
LODNS 1t $01TvIce.
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Appendix C
Avista Compliance Status / Actions

This Appendtx lists cach item in the Violation Report {Appendix A to the Settlement
Agreement), identifies the level of Avista’s compliance; and states the future actions
Avista agrees to take to assure compliance system-wide in this state, These actions are
in addition to the monetary penalty Avista has agreed to pay, as described in Paragraph
17 of the Settlement Agreement.

Violation 1
WAC 480-93-015, Qdorization of Gas

Avista is now in cornpliance, so no further acton is required.

Violation 2
- WAC 480-93-110, Corrosion Control

Avista is now in compliance with respect to the specific facilities described for this
atlegad Violation, but Avista agrees to do the following additional studies and work:

|For prarpases of the following requivements “shorf section™ s defined as isolated
steel main or steel services, not in excess of 100 fest, either with or without aclequate
cathodic protection applied. (CFR Part 192.465({a}}]

a. By February 28, 2003, Avista will conduct a study of their Ritzville and
Goldendale area pipeline systems to determine whether they have any
 short sections of pipeline.
b. By July 1, 2003, Avista will conduct a study of their Spokane arca pipeline
syslems Lo delermine whether they have any shorl sections of pipeline,
¢ By July 1, 2003, Avista will provide the Commission a complete list of all
short sections of pipeline identified, including those with or without
adequate cathodic protection levels applied., '
d. By December 31, 2003, Avista will replace with plastic or cathodically
- protect all short sections of pipeline found to have inadequate cathodic
-profeeﬁl:m.



¢, Starting in July 2003, by the end of each month, Avista will provide
progress reports to the Commission on the replacement or cathodic
protection of all short sections of pipeline identified.

f. By December 31, 2003, Avista will develop and implement a cathodic
protection monitoring plan whereby 10 percent of all short sections of
pipeline are tested for adequate levels of cathodic protection each year
{each section tested every ten years). The plan must meet the
requirements of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 192 465(a).

Violation 3
WAC 480-93-110, Corrosion Control

Avista is now in compliance, so no further action is required.

Violation 4 :
WAC 480-93-183, Pipeline and System Pressure Reporting

Avista is now in compliance with respect Lo the specific documents described for this
alleged Violation. Additionally, Avisto.agrees to provide training by February 28, 2003
to appropriale personnel on the reportng reqmrements of Washington Administrative
Code, {(WAC) Chapter 480-93-183. :

Violation 5, Viclation 6, Viclation 7, Violation §
WAC 430-93-186{1)(c}, 480-93-136(b), 480-23-187(2), WAL 480-93- 188{6}, Leakage
Classification and Action Criteria, Records and Self Audit, Gas Leak Surveys (Pressure

Tests)

Avista is now in compliance, so no further action is required.
Viplation 9

CFR Part 192,469, Fxternal Corrosion Control, Test Stations

Avigta is now in compliance with respect to the spedific faclities described for this
alleged ViolaHon, but Avista agrees to do the following additional studies and work:



a. By December 31, 2003, Avista will conduct a study of their entire pipeline
systetr in Washington State to determine whether any additional cathodic
protection teat stations are necessary.

b. By July 1, 2004, Avista will install any additional cathodic profection test
stations deemed necessary and provide progress/completion reports to the
Commission by March 3T and June 30,2004,

c. By December 31, 2003 Avista will create and implement a program to conduct
cathodic protection test readings each time steel pipe is exposed by company
pr contractor personnel.

Violation 10
Part 192.383(b), Excess Flow Valves

Avista 1s now in compliance, so no further action 1s required.

Violation 11
Part 192.467(d), Casing of Pipelines

Avista is now in compliance, so no further action is required.

Violation 12
Part 192.491{¢c), Corroslon Control Records

Avista is now in compliance with respect to the specific documents described for this
alicged Violation. Additionally, Avista agrees to provide training by April 30, 2003 to
appropriate persanncl on atmospherie corrosion corlrol monitoring and record keeping
requirements.



